
Memorandum

DATE December 28, 2018 CITY OF DALLAS 

TO Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

SUBJECT 

“Our Product is Service” 
Empathy | Ethics | Excellence | Equity 

Meeting with U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development on Ridgecrest 
Terrace Apartments 

On Wednesday, October 24, 2018, the Dallas City Council requested that the City 
Manager reach out to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 
to explore actions that could be taken to address dilapidated multifamily properties 
such as Ridgecrest Terrace Apartments (Ridgecrest). This memorandum is 
intended to summarize the discussions held to date.  

Summary 
On Monday, December 17, 2018, my staff and I met with HUD Regional 
Administrator Beth Van Duyne and her staff. During the meeting, we discussed 
specific issues related to Ridgecrest and had broader discussions about Housing 
Assistance Payment (HAP) contracts, redevelopment of dilapidated multifamily 
properties, and affirmatively furthering fair housing.  

Background 
Ridgecrest is an occupied, 250-unit multifamily property that was built in 1969. Currently, 
the property is subject to a project-based HAP contract administered by HUD that requires 
units to be set aside for rental to low-income tenants. The HAP contract expires on August 
31, 2020.  

Late this summer, on August 28, 2018, the City of Dallas filed a lawsuit against the owner 
of Ridgecrest, alleging that the property was a place where persons habitually go to 
commit crimes, including aggravated assault, arson and aggravated robbery. The lawsuit 
also alleged that the owner knowingly tolerated the habitual criminal activity and failed to 
make reasonable attempts to abate the activity. Later, on October 5, 2018, the City 
amended its lawsuit to further allege that the owner failed to maintain the property in 
compliance with City codes, including failing to provide sufficient fire extinguishers, 
heating facilities, and working plumbing fixtures. On December 12, 2018, a Dallas County 
judge entered a temporary injunction that orders the owner of Ridgecrest to repair the 
property within six months. 

During the same late-summer timeframe, DAL Steele Ridgecrest LLC was seeking to 
acquire and rehabilitate Ridgecrest and proposed to obtain an allocation of housing tax 
credits to partially finance the acquisition and rehabilitation of the property. In pursuit of 
the tax credit allocation, DAL Steele Ridgecrest LLC submitted a proposal for a Resolution 
of No Objection from the City of Dallas, which was considered by the Dallas City Council 
on October 24, 2018. Staff did not recommend that the City Council issue a Resolution of 
No Objection for Ridgecrest because it did not obtain a passing score for its proposal and 
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the proposed project did not affirmatively further fair housing. The City Council voted to 
decline to issue a Resolution of No Objection for Ridgecrest and directed the City 
Manager to contact HUD to determine whether HUD could find the current owner “in 
default” of the existing HAP contract and issue portable rental assistance vouchers that 
would allow residents of Ridgecrest to relocate to housing that is decent, safe and 
sanitary.  

On November 13, 2018, I contacted HUD via letter, a copy of which is attached to this 
memorandum, and requested an in-person meeting so that we could discuss the specific 
concerns raised by the City Council about Ridgecrest and have a broader discussion 
about HAP contracts and investing in racially or ethnically concentrated areas of poverty 
(R/ECAP). 

Issue 
On Monday December 17, 2018, my staff and I met with HUD Regional Administrator 
Beth Van Duyne and her staff. Through the discussion, we learned the following about 
Ridgecrest: 

• Ridgecrest is on HUD’s “watch list” due to the condition of the property and 
HUD’s concerns about the crime occurring on the property and within the 
surrounding neighborhood. HUD staff are closely monitoring the property and 
make frequent site visits to the property;

• In the past five months, HUD inspected the property conditions at Ridgecrest 
twice. On its most recent inspection, Ridgecrest received a passing score. HUD’s 
standards are lower than the City’s Chapter 27 standards or minimum housing 
standards;

• HUD has worked with the owner and property manager to develop a new policy 
to prevent illegal parking.  Residents must register cars with the property manager 
and non-registered cars parked onsite are now subject to being towed at the 
owner’s expense;

• HUD also completed a management performance review of Ridgecrest that 
looked at financial reporting, tenant files, security and maintenance and assigned 
Ridgecrest a “below average” rating;

• While the HAP contract for the property expires in 2020, it is subject to auto-
renewal at the discretion of the owner. Therefore, unless the owner is in default of 
the contract, there is no basis for HUD to decline to renew the contract; and

• The owner, if he so chooses, may assign a portion of the HAP contract to another 
multifamily complex, subject to HUD’s approval.

HUD representatives also stated that they were aware of the City’s litigation efforts related 
to crime and property conditions at Ridgecrest and noted that the City is the entity 
responsible for enforcing the City’s Minimum Property Standards.  

Additionally, we identified the following opportunities for HUD and the City to collaborate: 
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• HUD agreed to provide the City a list of all properties in the City of Dallas that
currently have a HAP contract, along with the expiration dates of the contracts;
and

• HUD indicated that various divisions in HUD, including the Office of Community
Planning and Development, may be able to provide technical assistance to the
City regarding identifying and implementing strategies to redevelop dilapidated
multifamily properties.

Finally, we discussed the City’s and HUD’s duties to affirmatively further fair housing. 
HUD officials noted that a determination of whether the construction or rehabilitation 
of housing affirmatively furthers fair housing, especially if such housing is located in 
a R/ECAP, is based on a complex set of factors, including when a project is 
constructed in relation to the construction of other housing reserved for low-income 
households and the occurrence or non-occurrence of activities designed to provide 
low-income households greater access to opportunity. Additionally, we asked 
specifically about any new tools or programs that might be forthcoming from HUD at 
the national level that would assist jurisdictions with the obligation to affirmatively 
further fair housing.  Ms. Van Duyne recommended that the City look at best practices 
from other jurisdictions as she did not anticipate any new tools or programs coming 
from HUD.  

Staff Recommendation 
After learning more about HAP contracts and the actions being taken by HUD to address 
maintenance concerns at properties with HAP contracts, the City will utilize the 
information provided to devise a more targeted approach to holding property owners 
accountable and coordinating efforts across all City departments and offices. It will also 
continue to implement the Comprehensive Housing Policy prioritizing mixed-income 
development activities that help to decrease the expansion of R/ECAPs. This proposed 
redevelopment strategy will be briefed to the City Council in late-April or early-May.  

T.C. Broadnax
City Manager

c: Chris Caso, City Attorney (I) 
Carol Smith, City Auditor (I)
Bilierae Johnson, City Secretary 
Preston Robinson, Administrative Judge 
Kimberly Bizor Tolbert, Chief of Staff to the City Manager 
Majed A. Al-Ghafry, Assistant City Manager 

Jon Fortune, Assistant City Manager 
Joey Zapata, Assistant City Manager 
Nadia Chandler Hardy, Assistant City Manager and Chief Resilience 
Officer 
M. Elizabeth Reich, Chief Financial Officer
Directors and Assistant Directors

[Attachment]



November 13, 2018 

Beth Van Duyne 
Regional Administrator 

CITY OF DALLAS 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
808 Cheny Street 
Fort Worth, Texas 76102 

Dear Ms. Van Duyne: 

On behalf of the City of Dallas, I write to initiate a dialogue with you on housing issues that are of 
critical interest to our residents, elected officials and staff. Recent discussions at City Hall on the 
living conditions at Ridgecrest Terrace Apartments, located at 400 South Walton Walker 
Boulevard, Dallas, Texas 75211 (Ridgecrest), led to questions on how properties with such poor 
living conditions should be addressed. To improve the quality of life for residents living in such 
dilapidated properties, the City of Dallas would like to meet with HUD to devise an intervention 
plan for properties that perpetuate poverty and segregation of low-income residents. 

A proposal was recently submitted to the City of Dallas which included the purchase of Ridgecrest 
by a new owner and the use of 4% Low-income Housing Tax Credits (LIHTC) for rehabilitation. 
The developer for the project was seeking a resolution of no objection from the City of Dallas to 
secure bond funding through the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs. City 
Council ultimately voted to decline the request for a resolution of no objection on October 24, 
2018. The concern was that Ridgecrest does not pass the fair housing review because 100% of 
the units are occupied by low-income tenants and the surrounding area has a high concentration 
of poverty. If 4% LIHTC were used to finance Ridgecrest redevelopment efforts, it would require 
an extension of the affordability period for 100% low income housing tenants. Critical to the 
analysis is that the complex is dilapidated and residents should not be forced to live in those 
conditions. The City of Dallas filed a lawsuit to obtain an order requiring the property owner to 
take reasonable measures to abate crime at Ridgecrest and to repair the substandard conditions 
at the property. However, the City realizes that it cannot independently tum around Ridgecrest 
and other like properties without some help. 

In an effort to start the dialogue on an intervention plan, I offer the following questions for 
consideration: 

• The HUD Housing Assistance Program (HAP) contract at Ridgecrest requires that 100%
of units be occupied by low income households, can this requirement be amended to
encourage mixed-income housing?

• Does HUD's contract with the owner require that the property be maintained at a certain
level? If so, who monitors the property to ensure the property is maintained at the level
that HUD requires?
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